
RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS ON THE RFP 
 
 

1. Is the city willing to lease to the Contractor the current phone, security systems (hardware & 

software) & computer systems (hardware & software) located at the shelter, and if yes, what 

would the associated lease fee be? 

 

It is the intention of the City to provide the phone, security systems, and computer systems. 

Replacement computers and upgraded computers or software is the responsibility of the 

contractor. 

 

2. In the section, Maintenance of the Shelter – Item 1 refers to all the building interior space that 

the Contractor must maintain but then goes on to say “This does not include regular janitorial 

service”.   Our assumption is that the Contractor needs to provide for regular janitorial services 

PLUS maintain all interior and exterior spaces (including a regular landscaping service).  Please 

confirm or clarify. 

 

Janitorial service and interior maintenance is the responsibility of the contractor. The exterior is 

maintained by the City as part of the park maintenance. 

 

3. In the section, Shelter Furnishing, Fixture, and Equipment (FFE) – it states that only certain FFE 

will be provided by the City and Contractor is responsible for the balance of FFE which is not 

provided by the City.  For purposes of budgeting, would it be possible to list any items that are 

currently at the shelter but that the City will not be providing to Contractor? 

 

Everything currently in the shelter will remain. Anything required by the contractor that is not 

currently in the facility, shall be provided by the contractor. 

 

4. If a Proposer submits a bid that excludes Animal Control responsibilities, would the Contractor 

still be required to man the phones to take incoming Dispatch calls during the hours that the 

Shelter is not open to the public.  In other words, if a Proposer only wanted to submit a bid for 

Shelter Services, would the Contractor’s staff need to maintain the Public Phone service hours 

beyond the times that the Shelter Services hours open to the public? 

 

Yes, the phone service hours are considered part of shelter operations.  If separate bids are 

received and accepted for shelter and animal control services, different arrangements may be 

made for dispatch services. 

 

5. If a Proposer submits a bid that excludes Animal Control responsibilities, how would the 

following revenue items be handled – Animal Control Fees and Impound Fees? 

 

Final financial arrangements may be negotiated; however, it should be assumed that the fee 
stays with the service, i.e. impound fees may stay with the shelter and other animal control fees 
may stay with animal control services. 
 



6. Are the current fleet of vehicles available to be leased or purchased by the Contractor and if yes, 

please identify the make/model and mileage of each vehicle including the sale or lease price? 

 

This information will be provided by close of business Tuesday, October 27, 2015. 

7. Since the Contractor will be responsible for proper maintenance and repairs of the facility and to 

protect the Contractor from any deferred maintenance items that may exist on the facility, 

would the city allow Contractor to hire an inspector to look for any significant item that may 

exist?  And if yes, how would the City propose to handle any deferred maintenance items that 

are found during this inspection? 

The City is open to having the contractor hire an inspector.  Any maintenance work or repairs 
may be negotiated.  There is no intention to leave deferred maintenance or major structural 
repairs to the contractor. The shelter facility is an asset of the City of Upland and will be 
maintained as such. 

 
8.  Is there a Fillable Form PDF version of the Vendor Application Form? 

 

No, there is not.  

 

9. It is not clear what “the current minimum level of service offered by the CITY” is.  Please 

provide detailed data on the minimum level of service, how it is measured, and what criteria 

is being evaluated to assess performance related to level of service. 

 

The current level of service refers to operating hours during which time the facility is open to 

the public. 
 

10. What is the current cost of the Chameleon Software?  When is that Chameleon software 

renewal due? How much leadtime will be available to transition to the City’s Chameleon to 

the respondent’s system?  Can you please provide a copy of that service/software 

agreement for review? 

 

It the intention of the City to provide and maintain the Chameleon software to the 

contractor. 
 

11. Can the City provide an FFE inventory?  It is difficult to budget for this without knowing in 

advance what will remain at the shelter vs. what will be removed. 

 

Anything currently in the shelter will remain in the shelter.  
 

12. The RFP states that “During contract negotiations an agreed upon baseline amount for 

license revenue will be established. Any amount above the baseline will be rebated back to 

the Consultant to encourage license canvassing, further promoting responsible pet 

ownership.”  What factors will be used to start the negotiations for this baseline amount?  Is 

there a baseline the City is already expecting to use for this? 



This item is negotiable; however, the City will need to cover the cost of the items that will still be 
provided to include major or structural building repair/maintenance, software, etc. The City may 
consider an average of the last two to three years of license fees as a baseline. 


